SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDAGES

EDWIN L. KOON,

CASE NO. 67, 216

Petitioner,

DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, 1ST DISTRICT - NO. BC-114 &

BC-115

vs.

BOULDER COUNTY, DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES,

Respondent.

INITIAL BRIEF

HALLEY B. LEWIS, ESQUIRE SAMUEL H. LEWIS, ESQUIRE HALLEY B. LEWIS, P.A. Downing-Frye Building 6 Bonita Beach Road Bonita Springs, Florida 33923 (813) 947-4299 Attorneys for Petitioner

TABLE OF CONTENT	8 (4) 110
Statement of the Case	1
Facts	1
Course of Proceedings	2
Nature of Case, Disposition	2
Issue	3
Summary	4
Arguement	Ē
Conclusion	12
TABLE OF CITATIONS	
Cases	
Hamilton v. Hamilton 476 S. W. 2d 197 (Ky. 1972)	11
Hartley v. Hartley 465 So. 592 (Fla. 2 DCA 1985)	1, 4

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This case has been accepted for review pursuant to order dated October 31, 1985, under authority Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, by the Supreme Court of Florida.

The exercise of this court's discretion is predicated upon a conflict, express and direct, between the decision in the case of Koon v. Boulder County, Department of Social Services, 468 So. 2d 1007 (Fla. 1 DCA 1985) and the decision in the case of Hartley v. Hartley, 465 So. 2d 592 (Fla. 2 DCA 1985).

On the question of whether or not, under URESA proceedings originating in Colorado, a Florida circuit court is authorized to raise the amount of child support fixed by a Colorado final decree of Dissolution, the First District Court of Appeal in Koon, supra, said, page 1008:

"... a responding court in such proceedings may enter a support order that is greater than a prior foreign judgment ..." and, in so deciding made the following observation about Hartley, supra:

"... (W)e disagree with the Second district's statement that the legislature intended to foreclose upward adjustment of foreign support orders in civil enforcement proceedings'."

FACTS OF THE CASE

This action arose in the trial court when Anna R. Smith as Petitioner from Wyoning commenced an action under the Uniform Reciprocal

Enforcement of Support Act, and obtained an Order to Appear and Show Cause. Petitioner Edwin L. Koon, as Respondent appeared without counsel, received an order, defaulted thereon, with the result that a second order to appear and show cause was issued on June 22, 1983, citing, among other things, the fact that he, Koon, had been ordered on November 29, 1982, to pay \$300.00 per month, beginning January 1, 1983. (Appendix i). Respondent, at this hearing, through counsel, raised the question of lack of authority of the court to raise amount of support over that contained in the Colorado Final Decree of dissolution. (Appendix ii).

The court entered the order dated September 2, 1983, after having received record showing \$19,953.00 A.D.C. grant accummulation prior to the entry of the Colorado Final Decree of Dissolution, (Appendix iii and iv) and the order dated October 12, 1983, as amended November 17, 1983, (Appendix v and vi). Which continued requirement of Petitioner to pay \$300.00 rather than as directed by Colorado Final Decree and to pay \$25.00 per month on arreage.

COURSE OF THE PROCEEDINGS.

On Motion in District Court the two cases were consolidated on Appeal, 1st District - No. BC-114 & BC-115.

THE NATURE OF THE CASE, DISPOSITION

The two cases above cited, of which this is one, created a conflict, expressly and directly, viz: Koon and Hartley.

The First District Court of Appeal of Florida by its decision aforesaid held the circuit court is authorized to increase the amount of child support above that called for in the Colorado Final Decree. The Hartley case, supra, held that the legislature foreclosed upward adjustment of Foreign support orders.

Petitioner here requests this court, under the authority stated, to resolve the conflict.

ISSUE

WHETHER UNDER THE UNIFORM RECIPROCAL ENFORCE-MENT OF SUPPORT ACT (URESA), THE COURTS OF FLORIDA, AS THE RESPONDING STATE, CAN ORDER CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS IN A GREATER AMOUNT THAN THAT ORDERED BY THE COURT WHICH RENDERED THE SUPPORT ORDER IN THE UNDERLYING DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE PROCEEDING.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial court, on petition under chapter 88, Florida Statutes URESA, by order raised the amount of monthly support from \$60.00, an amount specified underlying Colorado final decree of dissolution of marriage to \$300.00, plus \$25.00 per month on arrearage.

Petitioner's contention that trial court was not authorized to increase the monthly child support provision was rejected. Appeal was taken to the District Court of Appeal, First District of Florida, relying on Stephens v. Stephens, 402 So. 2d 1301 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981).

While case was pending in said Destrict Court, the Second District published its opinion in Hartley v. Hartley, 465 So. 2d 593 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1985). Hartley holds that foreign support order can not be adjusted upward. The relief here sought to have the conflict between the two cited cases resolved by ruling, in effect, that a support provision contained in an underlying final judgment of a sister state is entitled to full faith and credit and is other than a URESA order.

ARGUMENT

WHETHER UNDER THE UNIFORM RECIPROCAL ENFORCE-MENT OF SUPPORT ACT (URESA), THE COURTS OF FLORIDA, AS THE RESPONDING STATE, CAN ORDER CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS IN A GREATER AMOUNT THAN THAT ORDERED BY THE COURT WHICH RENDERED THE SUPPORT ORDER IN THE UNDERLYING DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE PROCEEDING.

THE ISSUE ISOLATED.

As an approach to argument the Initial Brief writer discusses points on which the decesion found and studied shed too little light, contain too much vagueness.

In the First District Court of Appeal Koon's attorney, the undersigned, relied confidently on the decision in Stephens v. Stephens, 402 So. 2d 1301 (Fla. 1 DCA 1981) where it was said with reference to Florida's Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act, Chapter 88, Florida Statutes:

"Although the statute is broad enough to permit a responding court in URESA action to initially determine the duty of support, this is not permitted when there is a previous order establishing support in the underlying dissolution of marriage proceeding."

Confidence was further bolstered by what was stated in Stephens with reference to Section 88.281 as it existed before and after its amendment in 1979, as reflected in Ray v. Pentlicki, 375 So. 2d 875 (Fla. 2 DCA 1979):

"The result we reach here is not compelled, as appellant argues, by the language of Section 88.281, Florida Statutes (1977) which provides that an order of support issued by a

Florida court in a URESA proceeding where Florida is the responding state shall not supersede any previous order issued in a dissolution of marriage or separate maintenance action. Nor is our conclusion in conflict with the 1979 amendment to Section 88. 281 effective October 1, 1979, as appellee argues. Section 88. 281, as amended, provides that a support order made by a court of this state pursuant to URESA does not nullify and is not nullified by a support order made by a court of this state pursuant to any other law or by a support order made by a court of any other state pursuant to a substantially similar act or other law, regardless of the priority of issuance, unless otherwise specifically provided by the court."

In the order by Judge Tench, dated October 12, 1983, (Appendix vi) he cited the case of Fowler v. State, Fla. App., 275 So. 2d 879; it is an obvious error, because the language used indicates he was referring to Ray, next above quoted.

The reference to the 1979 Act as amended is significant. Judge Ervin in Koon, supra, used italics to describe the court's interpretation, viz:

"A support order made by a court of this state pursuant to this act does not nullify and is not nullified by a support order ... made by a court of any other state pursuant to a substantially similar act or any other law, regardless of priority of issuance, unless otherwise specifically provided by the court."

The undersigned believes a more appropriate underscoring would be as follows:

"A support order made by a court of this state <u>pursuant to</u> this act does not nullify and is not nullified by a support order ... made by a court of any other state <u>pursuant to a substantially similar act</u> or any other law, regardless of priority of issuance, unless otherwise specifically provided by the court."

Chapter 88, Florida Statutes was enacted with four parts. The first part, Section 88.011-88.051 deals with legislative intent, and definitions; Part III, Sections 88.081-88.311, deals with civil enforcement; and Part IV, Sections 88.321-371, deals with Registration of Foreign Support orders. In Section 88.031(3) two types of orders are contemplated, viz: Imposed or Imposable.

The case of Hodge v. Maith, 435 So. 2d 387 (Fla. 5 DCA 1983), in a footnote 5, refers to the duty of support whether imposed or imposable, that the Act creates no duty of support and does not depend on a pre-existing court order. This quoted observation makes sense:

"(It is not) only orders of support of one state (that) will be enforced under the Act. In fact, it is 'all duties' and the duty, of course, may grow out of the order of support or a judgment or decree but is equally a duty if it never has received judicial attention and now is the basis of litigation for the first time under the Act."

With the last above described observation it is well to review the expressed legislative intent, Section 88.012, Florida Statutes, viz:

"It is declared to be the public policy of this state ... that children residing in this state or some other state shall be maintained from the resources of responsible parents ..."

It is clear that the purpose is to uniformly enforce the duty of support. Therefore, when chapter 88, Florida Statutes, is viewed in this light, the purpose of the four parts appear, although, not set forth in writing among the cases studied, viz:

Part I. An unmet duty of support may result from a default on a

court order or in the absense of such an order - thus, imposed or imposable.

Part II. There may be revealed the need to employ criminal proceedings. (Here, mentioned only for clearity)

Part III. Proceedings under this Part deal with imposable duties under the act. This is made clear by the language of Section 88.081

"88.081 Choice of law.—Duties of support applicable under this act are those imposed under the laws of any state where the respondent was present for the period during which support is sought. The respondent is presumed to have been present in the responding state during the period for which support is sought until otherwise shown."

Part IV. This Part deals with "duty of support" based on a foreign support order.

Chapter 88, Florida Statutes, in summary, is for enforcement of the duty of support, recognized in the state where the obligor is. If there is no existing known order, one can be fashioned. If, there is an existing order, it may be enforced when registered. With this summary, a reading of Section 88.281, with underscoring as was done hereinabove and here repeated for emphasis, it is submitted, is a reasonable interpretation.

In discussing cases and in reading cases, care must be taken to note if the order under study is an existing one under the act, of which enforcement is sought or one based on a duty under the laws of the state where the need is and there is no order.

SUPPORT ORDERS UNDER THE ACT.

Hereinabove, reference is made to Judge Ervin's quotation of Section 88.281, Florida Statutes, with emphasis in italics. The court's attention is again directed to this quotation because it discloses the fallacy of the court's thinking with support orders under URESA and those issued in underlying dissolution of marriage actions. The words immediately following states that the order on appeal does not provide that it nullifies the Colorado divorce decree. With this we come to the focal point of the appeal to the First District Court of Appeal in Koon, can a URESA order nullify an existing final judgment of a sister state, entered in a divorce action?

Before making argument on that point a discussion is in order in relation to the conflict between Koon and Hartley. In Koon, The First District Court of Appeal stated:

"... a responding court in such proceedings (URESA) may enter a support order that is greater than a prior foreign judgment ..."

Speaking about URESA actions, (without conceding that the Colorado support was a URESA action) the First District's conclusion is in conflict with the decision in Hartley.

Hartley, like Koon, involved a support order contained in a Final

Judgment in divorce. Hartley said the Legislature had "foreclosed upward adjustment of foreign support orders." The opinion in both Hartley
and Koon refer to the support order as a foreign support order. Whereas, in

both separately were a provision in a final judgment of divorce. Hartley found in Section 88.271, Florida Statutes, the lack of authority to adjust "upward" a foreign support order, viz:

"Because this section refers only to defenses, we infer a legislative intent to foreclose upward adjustment of foreign support orders in a civil enforcement proceeding."

Assuredly, there is conflict, express and direct, between the decision in Hartley and that of Koon, each involved with a support order as a part of a final judgment of a sister state.

It seems that Hartley contains better reasoning which resolves the conflict without passing on the question of a support provision contained in a final judgment of divorce being entitled to full faith and credit in a sister state.

A SUPPORT ORDER CONTAINED IN A FINAL JUDGMENT OF A SISTER
STATE ISSUED IN AN UNDERLYING DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE ACTION.

This court has the opportunity here to stabilize and harmonize the administration and enforcement of child support by deciding that such is entitled to full faith and credit, when such order is a part of final judgment of divorce or dissolution of marriage. This court has an opportunity, it is submitted, to affirm the principle announced in Stephens, supra, viz:

"... the statute is broad enough to permit a responding court in a URESA action to initially determine the duty of support, this is not permitted when there is a previous order establishing support in the underlying dissolution of marriage proceeding."

The statue is broad enough to permit a responding state in a URESA

action to initially determine the duty of support except when there is a previous order establishing support in the underlying dissolution of marriage proceeding.

In the case of Hamilton v. Hamilton, 476 S.W. 2d 197 (Ky. 1972), a wife, a Kentucky resident, sought child support from her child's father, in Florida. Much legal action is described, but the essential point is that the Court of Appeals of Kentucky, under the Act as it existed prior to 1979, stated that the Florida court had no authority to change or alter the Kentucky Judgment.

In Helmick v. Helmick, 436 So 2d 1122 (Fla. 5 DCA 1983);

"The act cannot, and does not attempt to, give the Florida court jurisdiction to modify the support order of another jurisdiction."

West's Florida Statutes Annotated quotes Florida Attorney General for the proposition that

"... a child support award entered in a dissolution of marriage action may not be modified in a proceeding under that Uniform act but may be maintained otherwise." 83-93, November 29, 1983.

order
The opinion in Koon views a URESA support/greater than a support order contained in a Final Judgment of divorce not a modification.

The people of Florida are entitled to better treatment. A URESA order that is greater than a support order contained in a final judgment of divorce, if given effect, is a modification. To say it isn't doesn't help.

As the saying goes, a rose by any other name is still a rose. An efficacious

order that calls for payments greater than that called for in the final judgment of a sister state is a modification of that other court's final judgment.

CONCLUSION.

A final judgment in a dissolution of marriage action which contains an order of support should be given full faith and credit in a sister state. This can be accomplished within the frame work of Hartley. Hartley like Koon, speaks of "foreign support orders." Both, obviously, relate to foreign support orders under URESA; Koon holding that an adjustment upward is permissible; Hartley, holding such is not permissible. The conclusion should be that neither can be adjusted upward, because each case is based upon a provision contained in a final judgment in dissolution of marriage issued by a sister state.

Halley B. Lewis, Esquire Samuel H. Lewis, Esquire

Halley B. Lewis, P.A.

Downing-Frye Building, Ste. 206-B

6 Bonita Beach Road

Bonita Springs, Florida 33923

Telephone (813) 947-4299

Attorneys for Petitioner