01A 3-6-86

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

EDWIN L. KOON,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 67, 216

BOULDER COUNTY, DEPARTMENT
OF SOCIAL SERVICES,

Respondent.

FILED
SID J. WHITE
DEC 17 1985
CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By _____
Chief Deputy Clerk

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

JOSEPH R. BOYD, ESQUIRE
WILLIAM H. BRANCH, ESQUIRE
SUSAN S. THOMPSON, ESQUIRE
BOYD AND THOMPSON, P. A.
2441 Monticello Drive
Tallahassee, Florida 32303
(904) 386-2171

AND

CHRISS WALKER, ESQUIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
REHABILITATIVE SERVICES
1317 Winewood Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
(904) 488-9900

Attorneys for Respondent

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The issue for resolution on appeal is whether a Florida circuit court as the responding state in a URESA proceeding can enter an order of support different from that of the original decree.

Petitioner contends that this question must be answered in the negative. Petitioner argues that an order increasing child support payments amounts to an unlawful modification of the original order, and is in violation of the full faith and credit clause of the United States Constitution. Accordingly, Petitioner contends that this Court should affirm the decision of Hartley v. Hartley, 465 So. 2d 592 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985), and overrule the decision of the First District Court of Appeal in the present action.

Respondent argues that it is the Hartley decision which is contrary to the law, and requests this Court to affirm Koon v. Boulder County, Dept. of Social Services, 468 So. 2d 1007 (Fla. 1st DCA 1965). Respondent contends that the Koon decision is supported by the weight of authority, including Florida law and the law of other jurisdictions.

A URESA action is a method by which a duty of support decreed in a foreign order can be enforced by Florida courts. The purpose of URESA is to simplify support enforcement when the parties to an enforcement action reside in separate

states. Thompson v. Thompson, 93 So. 2d 90 (Fla. 1957). In order to accomplish its purposes, URESA must be liberally construed. Rohrer v. Kane, 609 P.2d 1121 (Colo. App. 1980).

The duty of support may be enforced in any responding state where jurisdiction over the obligor can be obtained. Hodge v. Maith, 435 So. 2d 387 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983), and it is the law of the responding state which defines the duty of support. Hodge, supra; Ray v. Pentlicki, 375 So. 2d 875 (Fla. 2d DCA 1979).

This Court has stated:

[I]t appears to be the duty of support imposed by a divorce or separate maintenance decree (as distinguished from the amount of the support so decreed) that is enforced by the responding state under the act in question.

Thompson, supra, at 93. Respondent claims this is a clear statement that a Florida court, as the responding state, can fashion a support order which increases the amount of support. One of the better discussions in Florida case law in regard to the authority of a Florida court to increase support amounts pursuant to a URESA action is found in the concurring opinion of Judge Cowart in Helmick v. Helmick, 436 So. 2d 1122 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983). Judge Cowart stated, "The responding court is free to enter an award higher than a previous award . . .this determination does not modify the

initiating state's, or any other state's previous order of support." Id, at 1129.

An order increasing the support amount does not modify the original support decree as claimed by Petitioner. Other jurisdictions have concluded that URESA allows a responding state to make its own determination as to the amount of support which justice requires. Murphy v. Murphy, 395 So. 2d 1047 (Ala. App. 1981); State of Georgia v. McKenna, 315 S.E. 2d 885 (Ga. 1984); Olson v. Olson, 534 S. W. 2d 526 (Mo. App. 1975).

The change in the amount of support ordered by the responding state does not violate the doctrine of full faith and credit. Full faith and credit need only be given to those orders which are final and permanent. If an order is subject to modification in the jurisdiction in which it was rendered, it is entitled to no more a degree of finality in the responding state in which it is being enforced. Only the duty of support is entitled to full faith and credit; not the amount of support. Thompson, surpa.

Colorado allows ongoing support to be modified. Pacheco v. Pacheco, 554 P.2d 720 (Colo. Ct. App. 1976). Accordingly, the Florida trial court in the instant case did not violate the full faith and credit doctrine when it rendered an order increasing Petitioner's monthly support payments.

Petitioner's and the Hartley court's interpretation of URESA unlawfully limits the equity powers of the Florida circuit courts. The circuit courts have jurisdiction over actions in equity. Section 26.012, Fla. Stat. (1984). A URESA action is an equitable proceeding. Abb v. Crossfield, 326 A.2d 234 (Md. App 1974).

However, Hartley, supra, and Petitioner would limit the equity power of the circuit courts by refusing them the authority to consider the facts and circumstances surrounding the URESA action and rendering an independent decision based on the requirements of justice. Hartley and Petitioner convert the circuit courts from courts of general equity power to mere collection agencies. This clearly was not the intent of the legislature. Any limitation on the equity power of the circuit courts is unlawful. Petitioner's argument must therefore fall, and Hartley must be reversed.

There is no Florida case authority upon which Petitioner can rely. The primary authority in regard to the question of the trial court's power in a URESA action to enter an increased amount of support is found in Thompson, supra. By stating that it is the duty of support as compared to the amount of support which is enforced, this Court has confirmed Respondent's position.

ARGUMENT I

UNDER THE UNIFORM RECIPROCAL ENFORCEMENT OF SUPPORT ACT (URESА), THE COURTS OF FLORIDA, AS THE RESPONDING STATE, CAN ORDER CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS IN A GREATER AMOUNT THAN THAT ORDERED BY THE COURT WHICH RENDERED THE INITIAL CHILD SUPPORT DECREE.

Petitioner asserts that under the Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act (URESА), child support payments cannot be ordered by Florida courts in an amount greater than that ordered by the Colorado court which dissolved the marriage of the parties. Such an increase in support amounts to an unauthorized modification by the Florida courts of the Colorado child support order, according to Petitioner.

Respondent contends that URESА allows a responding state to enter a support order establishing a child support amount different from that of the state which rendered the original order. Furthermore, the order of the responding state does not act to modify the order of the foreign jurisdiction. In support of this contention, Respondent will not only look to the law of Florida in regard to URESА actions, but will also review court decisions from sister states which construe URESА. It is necessary to note that the Act adopted by the various jurisdictions, including Florida, is substantially "uniform". Hence, an application of the law in one of these jurisdictions, in regard to an issue arising under URESА, is

enlightening if not persuasive when addressing a similar issue in Florida. As such, Respondent requests this Court look to these foreign cases in determining its decision in the present appeal.

A short background on URESA is in order.

The general purposes of the Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act are to improve and extend the enforcement of support obligations between the various states. Section 88.012, Florida Statutes (1984). The intent of URESA is to simplify the procedure by which an obligor's support duties can be enforced by an obligee residing in another state. The Act is designed to assist the obligee in enforcing that obligation expeditiously and with a minimum of expense. Thompson v. Thompson, 93 So. 2d 90 (Fla. 1957). To achieve this end, the Act provides that any remedies under the Act are in addition to, and are not in substitution of any other remedies. Thompson, supra; Section 88.012, Florida Statutes (1984).

[The] Act is designed to provide a remedy entirely separate from and independent of any remedies existing under other applicable provisions of law
. . . .

Thompson, at 93. URESA recognizes the fact that the support obligation may arise out of a dissolution or separate

maintenance decree rendered by another jurisdiction. To this end the Act states:

A support order made by a court of this state pursuant to this act does not nullify and is not nullified by a support order made by a court of this state pursuant to any other law or by a support order made by a court of any other state pursuant to a substantially similar act or any other law, regardless of priority of issuance, unless otherwise specifically provided by the court. Amounts paid for a particular period pursuant to any support order made by the court of another state shall be credited against the amounts accruing or accrued for the same period under any support order made by the court of this state.

Section 88.281, Florida Statutes (1984).

In order to accomplish the legislative intent as set forth in Section 88.012, Respondent contends that URESA must be liberally construed. Sister states, in construing URESA, have concluded that such liberal construction is necessary and justified. Commonwealth of Virginia Ex Rel. Halsey v. Autry, 441 A.2d 1056 (Md. App. 1982); Rohrer v. Kane, 609 P.2d 1121 (Colo. App. 1980); Olson v. Olson, 534 S.W. 2d 526 (Mo. App. 1976).

In light of the purposes of the act and the legislative grant of broad powers to fashion the necessary remedies, we conclude that URESA must be liberally construed.

Rohrer, supra, at 1122.

The duty of support which URESA is fashioned to enforce may be enforced in any responding state where jurisdiction over the obligor can be obtained. Hodge v. Maith, 435 So. 2d 387 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983). It is clearly the law of the responding state which defines the duty of support. Hodge, supra; Ray v. Pentlicki, 375 So. 2d 875 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1979). The issue presented in the instant case is whether the law of Florida, as the responding state, allows for an increase in the support obligation under URESA.

The Florida Supreme Court alluded to this question when it stated:

[I]t appears to be the duty of support imposed by a divorce or separate maintenance decree (as distinguished from the amount of the support so decreed) that is enforced by the responding state under the act in question.

Thompson, supra, at 93. When the above is read in conjunction with the Court's statement that "the Act is designed to provide a remedy entirely separate from and independent of any remedies existing under other applicable provisions of law", Id. at 93, it becomes evident that the Florida courts possess the authority and discretion to increase Petitioner's child support obligation. Florida courts can enter a child support order separate from that entered by the Colorado court before which the dissolution

proceeding of the parties took place. In the process, the Florida courts are enforcing the duty of support imposed by the Colorado court.

One of the better discussions in Florida case law regarding URESA is found in the concurring opinion of Judge Coward in Helmick v. Helmick, 436 So. 2d 1122 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983). The succinctness and clarity of Judge Coward's concurrence, in regard to its application to the issues presented in the instant case, bears repeating.

Although a URESA action under the Civil Enforcement provisions may be based on previously entered orders of support, a previous support order is not essential, only facts giving rise to a duty of support. Furthermore, regardless of any previous support order, it is the responding court and not the initiating court that makes the final determination of the amount of support required to be paid by the respondent in the responding state. Although an initiating court's determination of an amount of support needed by the petitioner and that respondent is able to provide may be prima facie evidence of this need and ability, this determination is not binding on the respondent court. The responding court is free to enter an award higher than a previous award or lower than a previous award. Although the responding court determines the amount of support required in the URESA proceeding, this determination does not modify the initiating state's, or any other state's previous order of support. Amounts paid under the order of a responding state are merely credited against amounts due under the unmodified

support order of an initiating state.
(Emphasis supplied).

Id. at 1129. A clearer statement in regard to the issues presented on appeal cannot be found. The First District Court of Appeal recognized this by citing Judge Cowart's concurrence in its opinion in the present action. Koon v. Boulder County, Department of Social Service, 468 So. 2d 1007 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985).

There is Florida case authority which implicitly recognizes that Florida courts have the authority to enforce an amount of child support less than the amount imposed by a sister state. Florida Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. Ciferni, 429 So. 2d 92 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1983); Friedly v. Friedly, 303 So. 2d 50 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1974). Accordingly,

If the court of the responding state can diminish the financial obligation it must have the corresponding power to increase it, for it is a poor rule that does not work both ways.

Olson v Olson, 534 S. W. 2d 526, 529 (Mo. App. 1976).

Numerous jurisdictions, as responding states in URESA proceedings, recognize the authority of their courts to order an amount of child support greater than that ordered by the original decree. Ainbender v. Ainbender, 344 A.2d 263 (Del. Super. Ct. 1975); Balenstine v. Jordan, 272 S.E. 2d 438 (S.C.

1980); Moore v. Moore, 107 N.W. 2d 97 (Iowa 1961); Fitzwater v. Fitzwater, 294 N.W.2d 249 (Mich. Ct. App 1980); Ibach v. Ibach, 600 P.2d 1370 (Ariz. 1979); Chisholm v. Chisholm, 251 N.W. 2d 171 (Neb. 1977); Menetrez v. Menetrez, 147 A.2d 772 (D.C. 1959); State Ex. Rel. State of Nebraska v. Brooks, 583 P.2d 12 (Or. Ct. App 1978); Jaramillo v. Jaramillo, 618 P.2d 528 (Wash. Ct. App. 1980); Despain v. Despain, 300 P.2d 500 (Idaho); State On Behalf of McDonnell v. McCutcheon, 337 N.W.2d 645 (Minn. 1983); State of Georgia v. McKenna, 315 S. E. 2d 885 (Ga. 1984); Commonwealth v. Byrne, 243 A.2d 196 (Pa. 1968); Abb v. Crossfield, 326 A.2d 234 (Md. Ct. Spec. App. 1974).

Numerous federal courts have also recognized that a responding state, under URESA, has the power to make an independent order fixing the amount of support different from that called for by the original decree. Government of Virgin Islands v. Lorillard, 385 F.2d 172 (3d Cir. 1966); Sheres v. Engelman, 534 F. Supp 286 (S.D. Tex. 1982); United States v. Stephens, 472 F. Supp 14 (E. D. Tenn. 1979).

In addition, the United States Supreme Court stated that a California resident seeking additional child support from a New York resident may either pursue the action in New York, or utilize URESA to "facilitate both her prosecution of a claim for additional support and collection of any support

payment found to be owed by appellant. "Kulko v. Superior Court of California, 436 U.S. 84, 100 (1978).

According to 67A C.J.S. Parent and Child, Section 96, pp. 452-453:

While a duty of support previously determined elsewhere will not be redetermined in the responding state, and a support order may not be superseded in the responding state, the amount of support previously ordered is not final and binding, and the court of the responding state has the authority to enter an independent order fixing a different amount of support than that previously set or recommended; the court may not erroneously fail to exercise its discretion in this respect. (Emphasis supplied).

Petitioner relies on Section 88.281, Fla. Stat., (1984), as authority for his argument attacking the order of the trial court and the First District Court of Appeal. In pertinent part, the Section provides:

A support order made by a court of this state pursuant to this act does not nullify and is not nullified by a support order made by a court of this state pursuant to any other law or by a support order made by a court of a substantially similar act or any other law, regardless of priority of issuance provided by the court. Amounts paid for a particular period pursuant to any support order made by the court of this state shall be credited against the amounts accruing or accrued for the same period under order made by the court of this state.

Respondent contends there is nothing in this Section which supports Petitioner's claim. The foregoing Section would not be necessary if the Florida court, as the responding court, is merely a collection agency to gather sums due on a previous order. The application of such amount to the former judgment would be automatic. However, URESA is not merely a collection statute.

The Iowa Supreme Court in construing a similar provision in its URESA stated:

[W]e think a reasonable interpretation of the entire act fairly shows it was intended to give an additional remedy, in the application of which the respondent court might make its own determination of the needs of the petitioning party and make such order as justice might require.

Moore, supra at 101. The Iowa Supreme Court continued in Moore to state that the foregoing opinion was also the holding of the Florida Supreme Court in Thompson, supra.

The United States Court of Appeals, Third Circuit, has construed the intention of the framers of URESA.

The framers of the Uniform Act doubtless took into account the fact that a court decree which is entered in a divorce or other proceeding involving the question of support is ordinarily final and definitive with respect to the duty of support which it imposes for the period of time during which the law requires such support be given. But the amount of support to be given in discharge of that duty is another matter.

The amount of support to be given in the future by the person obligated to give it, as distinguished from the duty to give it, is almost universally subject to modification from time to time by the court in light of changing circumstances of the parties. Accordingly, it is only the duty of support determined by the foregoing judgment, and not the amount of support thereby decreed, which is binding on the court of the responding state. . . (Emphasis supplied).

Government of Virgin Islands, supra at 177. The above statement is clearly the position which the Florida Supreme Court took in Thompson, supra.

The Minnesota Supreme Court construed provisions in its URESA similar to Sections 88.271 and 88.281, Fla. Stat., (1984). State On Behalf of McDonnell, supra. The Court construed the language of those provisions to mean that the foreign order is simply evidence of a duty to support. The Court did not find the language compelled the responding state to award the same level of support. Id. The Court continued by stating, "We adopt the view of those courts which have held that a responding state may independently determine an appropriate level of support to impose on the obligor." Id at 649.

Respondent contends this Court should reaffirm its previous holding in Thompson, supra, and specifically adopt the holding of Koon, supra, that a responding court in a

URESА proceeding may enter a support order that is greater than a prior judgment.

ARGUMENT II

THE CHILD SUPPORT PROVISION OF THE UNDERLYING DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE ACTION WAS NOT ENTITLED TO FULL FAITH AND CREDIT.

Petitioner argues that the child support provision of the underlying dissolution of marriage decree is entitled to full faith and credit. Accordingly, Petitioner claims a Florida court does not have the authority to order an amount of child support different from that ordered by the Colorado court in the present action. Respondent contends that the principle of full faith and credit does not impact on the decision of the First District Court of Appeal in the present action.

Article IV, Section 1, of the United States Constitution requires the courts of each state to give full faith and credit to the judicial proceedings of every other state. Thus, the courts of Florida must enforce a valid final judgment of a sister state as they would a Florida judgment, unless it violates some public policy of the State of Florida. Berger v. Hollander, 391 So.2d 716 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1980).

The doctrine of full faith and credit only applies to those issues that are finally determined by a foreign judgment. Lopez v. Avery, 66 So. 2d 689 (Fla. 1953).

However, a judgment rendered in a foreign state need not be recognized or enforced by Florida courts insofar as the judgment remains subject to modification in the state of rendition. Sistare v. Sistare, 218 U.S. 1 (1910). As this Court has stated:

As the matter is stated in one of the general authorities on the subject: "Where [a provision in a divorce decree for the support of a child] is, either under the statute or by its very terms, subject to modification, in the discretion of the court...[where rendered]...as to installments to fall due in the future, it is obvious that the decree is not final and therefore not entitled to full faith and credit in another state... as to installments not yet accrued...they are not entitled to the protection of the the full faith and credit clause because in such case no money is yet due and as to such installments the decree is generally understood to be subject upon proof of changed conditions, to modification by the court rendering it.

Avery, supra at 692.

In the present case, the Final Decree of Dissolution was rendered by a court of the State of Colorado. The law of Colorado allows for the modification of child support orders upon the showing of a change in circumstances. Pacheco v. Pacheco, 554 P.2d 720 (Colo. App. 1972).

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